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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

SUMMARY OF PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE_________________________________________

The Mediterranean Revival Style building located at 1215 North Palm Avenue is a two- 
story central pavilion flanked by two one-story wings. The grey-toned stucco facade 
with cast stucco ornamentation was applied over an earlier, two-story wood-framed 
building which was moved to the site at an unknown date. Beneath the Mediterranean 
Revival "slipcover" is a flush-board, sided structure. The "slipcover" was applied 
prior to December, 1925. The grey-toned facade is decorated with stucco ornamentatic: 
including a "C"-scrolled rondel with acanthus and bellflower motifs and ornate 
cartouches which appear at the entrance elevation and terminate in bellflower pendants 
The two-story entrance pavilion located at the .south elevation of the structure is 
divided into three bays. Three entrances formerly provided access to the ground floor 
of the residence; the ground floor currently is pierced by an entrance located at the 
center or second bay, flanked by windows located at the first and third bays. A shed- 
roofed hood protects the ground floor entrance and the form is repeated at the first ! 
and third bay window openings located at the second floor. Located at the center bay \ 
of the second story is a round-arched window with semi-circular balcony provided. j 
Windows were originally wood casements which have been replaced by single-paned 
windows with "snap-in" muntins which give the impression of multi-paned openings. T 
one-story wings flank the two-story central pavilion at the east and west elevations. I 
The west wing is a porte-cochere with round-arched vehicular access openings, while : 
the eastern wing is an enclosed room. The F. A. DeCanizares Residence sits on a high j 
base and is approached by stairs which lead to an entrance patio. The structure has 
recently been restored and serves as an attorney's office. 
__________________________________________________________-______________...J

TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Number 1215 North Palm Avenue is a tripartite-massed structure consisting of a two- 
story, three-bay central pavilion flanked by two one-story wings. The building is a 
Mediterranean Revival Style structure with a stucco facade which was applied over an 
earlier two-story wood structure. 3 The Mediterranean Revival Style "slipcover" was 
applied to the earlier building prior to 1925. 4 A photograph of the building which 
appeared in the Sarasota Herald in December of 1925 provides documentation of the 
appearance of the "slipcovered" residence. 5 The central entrance pavilion is two 
stories in elevation with vertical tension provided by the use of two-story corner 
piers located at the east and west corners and the projecting plane of the entrance 
bay. The entrance frontispiece projects above the cornice line in the form of a 
shaped parapet which was formerly topped by a Dutch-gabled parapet (a small, curved 
parapet with a pedimented crest). The roof line was formerly encircled by a balustrac 
which was located between the post and shaped parapet forms.
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The residence sits on a high base which is approached by a series of steps leading to 
a raised entrance patio. Three entrance doors were formerly provided at the ground 
floor of the central or entrance pavilion. The main entrance located at the second 
or center bay is protected by a pantiled shed-roofed hood, a form which is repeated 
at the first and third window bays located at the second story. The openings 
located at the first and third bays of the ground floor were originally doors 
projected by wood-framed, screen doors—currently the ground floor consists of an 
entrance door located at the second bay and flanked by windows located at the first 
and third"bays. The second story is pierced by three window openings, which were 
formerly wood casement windowed openings. The wood casement windows have been 
replaced by single-pane windows with "snap-in" muntins. Pan-tiled, shed-roofed 
hoods, supported on massive wood brackets protect the windows located at the first 
and third bays of the second story. The second floor center or second bay is a 
round-arched window opening set within a round-arched recessed opening. French 
doors open on to a semi-circular balconette. The grey-toned stucco facade is 
decorated by applied ornamental stucco--a wreathed rondel with four acanthus leaves, 
terminating in stylized bellflowers appearing on the shaped parapet located at the 
entrance bay. Ornate cartouches adorn the upper ends of the stylized corner piers. 
Each cartouche is set within a border of "C"-scrolls and terminates in bellflower 
pendants.

Two one-story wings flank the two-story entrance pavilion. The-corners of the wings 
are enframed by massive corner piers which extend as post parapets which flank 
pantiled, shed roofed parapets. The western wing is a porte-cochere with round- 
arched vehicular openings and a 'smaller round-arched opening providing access to an 
entrance porch located beside the porte-cochere.

The eastern wing is similar in massing with corner piers and shed-roof parapet; 
however, the wing is an enclosed space rather than an open porte-cochere. The north 
elevation is also enframed by a series of corner piers located at the one and two- 
story blocks. Fenestration varies in a pattern of paired and single double-hung 
sashed openings. A smaller one-story porch or service entrance is provided at the 
northwest corner north facade of the two-story central pavilion.

Alterations: The ground floor of the south elevation of the two-story center 
pavilion was former! • marked by three entrance doors; the ground floor currently 
consists of an entrance located at the second or center bay flanked by windows 
located at the first and third bays. Original casement windows have been replaced 
by single-paned openings with "snap-in" muntins which create the impression of 
multi-paned windows. A balustrade formerly linked the areas between the post and 
pedimented roof parapets of the two-story pavilion. A knob finial once topped the 
apex of the hipped roof of the main pavilion.

Use: Formerly a private residence, Number 1215 North Palm Avenue has been sensi­ 
tively restored and adaptively re-used as an attorney's office.
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SUMMARYOF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Located at 1215 North Palm Avenue the Mediterranean Revival Style structure was 
formerly the Frederic A. DeCanizares Residence. Mr. DeCanizares purchased the 
property from the Burns Realty Company in November of 1923. The primary residence 
of the DeCanizares family was located in Wayne, Pennsylvania. The Mediterranean 
Revival Style grey stucco facade with ornamental cast stucco ornamentation was in 
effect a "slipcover" which was applied to an earlier, two-story, wood-framed structure 
which was moved to the site at an undetermined date. Number 1215 North Palm Avenue 
was relocated to an area which rapidly developed as an enclave of Mediterranean and 
Spanish Colonial Revival style structures, with the'L. D. Reagin residence located at 
1213 North Palm and the Frances Carlton Apartments located at 1241-1247 North Palm. 
The significance of the F. A. DeCanizares Residence lies in the re-use of the strud 
with a Mediterranean Revival "slipcover" applied and the resulting compatibility of 
texture, materials, style and scale with adjacent structures. Formerly a private 
residence, the building has been adaptively re-used as the office of a local law firm. 
The restoration of the structure is noteworthy.

TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The two-story structure with one-story wings, located at 1215 North Palm Avenue, is a 
Mediterranean Revival Style stucco facade "slipcover" which was applied over an 
earlier two-story wood-framed building, which was moved to the site at an undetermined
date. 11 The site was purchased by Frederic A. DeCanizares from the Burns Realty
Company in November of 1923. 12

located in Wayne, Pennsylvania.
The primary residence of the F. A. DeCanizares was 
13

The application of a lath and stucco facade over an earlier, flush-sided, wood-frame 
structure is noteworthy. The "slipcovering" was so successful that the Sanborn 
Insurance Company listed the bulding as a concrete block structure on the 1929 map of 
Sarasota. One would suspect that insurance rates for the residence were lower, 
given the mistaken construction material assigned to 1215 North Palm Avenue. The 
application of lath and stucco finish to the earlier building gave a "modern" 
appearance to the F. A. DeCanizares Residence. The North Palm Avenue area rapidly 
developed into an enclave of Mediterranean Revival and Spanish Colonial Revival 
Style structures, with the L. D. Reagin Residence located at 1213 North Palm Avenue 
and the Frances-Carlton Apartments located at 1241-1247 North Palm Avenue. The 
Mediterranean Revival Style covering was compatible in texture, materials, ornamenta 
tion, style, scale and massing with the adjacent stucco buildings. The corner piers
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used on 1215 are similar to the massive masonry corner piers present at the 
L. D. Reagin Residence, located to the west at 1213 North Palm Avenue. The 
building is a successful example of compatible "infill" design.

Formerly used as a private residence, number 1215 North Palm has recently under­ 
gone a sympathetic restoration and re-use as the offices of a local firm of 
attorneys. The re-use and restoration are commendable.
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5 Ibid. 

6 Ibid. 

7 Ibid.
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Sarasota County. Deeds. Liber 13, p. 152. November 21, 1923. Located 
at Sarasota County Courthouse. Sarasota, Florida.

9This Week in Sarasota. April 29, 1926. p. A-6, col. 1. 

10Miss Lillian Burns, Personal Correspondence. April, 1983.
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USGS Sarasota 7.5 1973

Township

T36S

Range

RISE

Section

19-

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Lot 1, Owen Burns Subdivision of portion of lots 38, 40, 42,
Block B
Plat of Sarasota
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